
 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services (01254) 380116/380109/380184 
Email: memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 9 September 2020 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 17 September 2020 at 7.00 pm, 
Virtual Meeting to be livestreamed on You Tube 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor June Harrison (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle MBE, 
Sara Britcliffe MP, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP, 
Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, 
Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, 
Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson OBE, Joyce Plummer, 
Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 
Separate joining instructions will be issued directly to Members 
 
The meeting may be viewed by the public and press on You Tube using the following link:- 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tv9UZA8GTZE 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 

a) Mayor 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tv9UZA8GTZE


Page 2 of 2 

 

 Remembrance of Councillor Tony Dobson 
 

b) Leader of the Council 
 

c) Chief Executive 
 

 Update on the COVID-19 Pandemic 
 

4.   Financial Position 2020/21 - COVID-19 Implications  (Pages 3 - 16) 
 
To consider a report of Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, on the 
Council’s financial position for 2020/21, in the light of the implications of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 

5.   Planning For The Future - White Paper August 2020  (Pages 17 - 26) 
 
To consider a report of the Leader of the Council, Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE, on 
the Government’s proposed changes to the planning rules. 
 

6.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice  (Pages 27 - 32) 
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9, as 
amended by Section 10 of the Remote Meetings Procedure Rules. 
 

 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 9 September 2020 
 



Page 1 of 13 
 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 17 September 2020 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Joe McIntyre 

Deputy Chief Executive 

TITLE OF REPORT: Financial Position 2020/21  COVID 19 Implications 

 

EXEMPT REPORT  

(Local Government 

Act 1972, Schedule 

12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1. The report informs Councillors of the current financial forecast for the Council’s 
Revenue Budget in 2020/21 in the wake of the COVID 19 pandemic. 

2. Recommendations  
 

2.1. Not applicable, this report is for information purposes only. 

3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 

Summary  

 

3.1. The current forecast of the Council’s Cash Flow until the end of the year indicates 
that while our cash balances are dwindling, we will maintain a positive balance and 
will not need to borrow to finance expenditure during the year. 

3.2. Without COVID 19 impacting us this year we would be forecasting a Surplus of 
£288,000 for the 2020/21 Financial Year at this stage. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.



Page 2 of 13 
 

3.3. Estimating the cost of COVID 19 and the impact on our revenues is difficult at this 
stage and all figures need to be viewed as early estimates at a time of great 
uncertainty. 

3.4. Our reasonable worst case scenario forecast is for extra spending of £2.8m and 
£371,000 net loss of income assuming the Government provides a grant of around 
45% of the income funds we lose. 

3.5. Combined with our normal budgetary activity this produces a net forecast loss for 
the year of £2.9m. 

3.6. This figure is reduced by £1,055,000 (less £16,000 of funds applied to expenditure 
in 2019/20) of additional Government Grant to assist the Council deal with COVID 
19 pressures.  The Council has also received £130,000 of New Burden Funding for 
the processing of Business Grants in the first 4 months of the year which will also 
help lower the overspend. 

3.7. Combining al the spending pressure, net loss of sales, fees & charges income and 
the predicted budget surplus from our normal activities outside of the impact of 
COVID 19, produces a forecast net overspend position for 2020/21 of £1.75m at 
this stage. 

3.8. In addition, the Council faces the loss of revenue from people switching from being 
Council Tax Payers to moving onto Council Tax Support and increased costs 
stemming from individuals not paying their Council Tax and Businesses not paying 
their business rates.  Increased Council Tax Support Costs are expected to be 
£130,000.  The level of failure to pay the HBC element of the Council Tax could be 
as much as £450,000 for 2020/21 and we could lose £685,000 of Business Rates in 
2020/21.  This adds a further £1.265m to the financial hit stemming from COVID 19.   

3.9. The loss of  income in relation to Council Tax Support, and failure to pay Council Tax 
and Business Rates will not crystallise until the 2021/22 financial year due to the 
statutory accounting requirement around local government finance. This reduces 
the immediate impact for the 2020/21 financial year but produces a double 
whammy in 2021/22.  In 2021/22 we will be required to downturn the expected 
revenues for 2021/22 from Council Tax, Council Tax Support  and Business Rates 
that is used to finance the Budget, as well as adjusting for the losses in 2020/21.  
Discussions are underway with the Government to change the accounting rules in 
these areas to spread some of the impact over a number of future years, but details 
have not yet emerged and there is no certainty at this stage any changes will be 
approved. 

3.10. The financial impact in 2020/21 and 2021/22 from COVID 19 will therefore be 
challenging for the Council, but given our previous strong track record around 
financial management it should be possible to manage the consequences 
effectively within our overall financial reserves. 

3.11. The Government intends to redistribute funding among local councils from 
2021/22 via their Fair Funding Review.  This may add to the financial pressures the 

Page 4



Page 3 of 13 
 

Council faces in that year and beyond if resources are transferred away from the 
Council to other parts of local government. 

Detail 

 

Cash Flow Pressures 2020/21 

3.12. At the start of the Lockdown there was significant concern that Council revenues 
from Council Tax and Business Rates would plummet as individuals and business 
stopped making payments due to the financial uncertainties caused by the crisis.  
There was also a concern that the Council would need to commit to spend 
extensively outside its normal Budget to help protect the vulnerable and ensure 
that key services continued to operate. 

3.13. Initial early estimates indicated the Council could potentially have exhausted its 
available cash within the first 3 months of the new financial year.  Steps were taken 
to secure an overdraft facility with our Bank and we laid plans to borrow 
substantial sums from the Public Works Loan Board if necessary.   We also flagged 
to the other Preceptors on the Collection Fund that we might not be able to make 
the full payments they were expecting during the year. 

3.14. The immediate squeeze on our cash position was eased with the arrival of funding 
from BEIS for Business Grants and the threat of running out of cash was further 
alleviated by the Government agreeing to move forward the dates on which 
Government Grants would be paid to Councils and defer payments from Councils to 
them.   

3.15. Tax Revenue streams have decreased by around 10% but have not plummeted to 
the 50% or below figure we initially feared.  This is potentially due to the 
Government’s furlough scheme which has secured most people’s income in some 
format over the initial part of the year and allowed many businesses to continue to 
operate and pay business rates over the period. 

3.16. It now looks likely that the Council will be able to operate through 2020/21 with a 
positive though dwindling cash position and if the current situation does not 
change too dramatically our cash position should improve in early 2021/22, with an 
expected  upsurge in tax payments at the start of the next financial year. 

 

COVID 19 Revenue Budget Pressure 2020/21 

3.17. There are a number of new and different financial pressures stemming from COVID 
19 that impact on the Council’s overall financial position.  At this stage it is not 
possible to estimate with a high degree of accuracy the additional costs the Council 
might incur or the level of revenue loss it might suffer.  This is because at this point 
in the year it is still unclear whether the virus will continue to spread and require  
social distancing and quarantine measures to continue or we can return to a more 

Page 5



Page 4 of 13 
 

normal way of operating.  It is also unclear whether the full financial impact of the 
virus has yet hit the economy and how severe the downturn will be in terms of job 
losses, business cutbacks and closedowns and a reduction of financial spending 
power in the local and national economy. 

3.18. Work will continue to be undertaken to track and monitor the financial impact of 
the virus and to improve the forecast throughout the year.  Regular updates will be 
provided to the Cabinet in the normal way at each of its scheduled meetings. 

3.19. The figures below are therefore presented in that context.  A summary of the 
figures is provided at Appendix 1. 

 

Hyndburn Leisure  £900,000 

   

 
Hyndburn Leisure is the key organisation in the Borough for the provision of health and well-being 
activities to the local community.  It generates around £2m in revenue every year with a similar 
expenditure profile.  This tends to leave it just breaking even or making a small loss each year.  As 
such it has no financial reserves. 
 
The Council’s Grant has reduced from over £1m in 2011/12  to £75,000 in 2020/21 and the Trust 
has improved how it operates, introduced new income lines, boosted revenues in other areas and 
improved its efficiency and reduced its operational expenditure in order to adjust to the loss of 
subsidy from the Council. 
 
In recent years, with the Council’s support and investment it has been moving towards self-
sufficiency and ensuring it could operate a regular and sustainable financial surplus. 
 
The Trust was on course to operate close to a break even position in 2019/20 ahead of the 
Lockdown and had plans to achieve a breakeven position in 2020/21 and a surplus in 2021/22, 
despite the ending of direct Council support. 
 
The Lockdown has caused the Trust to lose a significant amount of income and it is expected that 
it  will take many months at least to recover to its normal turnover as COVID 19 measures are 
relaxed and customers return.  During this period when its income levels are supressed it will 
continue to operate at a loss. 
 
The Trust  have acted financially responsibly during COVID 19 and  have taken a number of 
prudent steps to manage their financial position  during this period.  These include closing 
facilities, furloughing staff, terminating payments to outside suppliers, renegotiating contracts 
were possible and generating additional income by applying for grants, as well as staff 
undertaking new income generating roles where possible.  This limited the Trust’s financial loss 
over this period, but did not remove it.  The Council continued to support the Trust during this 
period by continuing to cash flow the Trust’s payroll and suspending recovery action for payroll 
costs outstanding.  This has allowed the Trust to meet the other operating costs it faces and not 
default on its liabilities.  The Trust continued during this period to meet the cost of loans it has 
with the Council. 
 
 

Page 6



Page 5 of 13 
 

Despite the actions taken by the Trust they will still operate at a significant financial loss in 
2020/21 without external support.  Hyndburn Leisure have estimated that they will incur a 
£605,000 operating deficit in 2020/21.  However, this was before the latest lockdown measures 
were applied to Hyndburn and therefore the deficit forecast has been increased here to £900,000 
to anticipate the additional financial impact they may now face. 
 
The Government has indicated they intend to provide some financial assistance to Leisure Trusts 
recognising the importance of their role in the community.  It is not expected that this will cover 
the full financial impact of COVID 19 and therefore the Council will need to assist by providing 
additional funds to ensure the Trust remains solvent.  At this stage the estimate for the help 
needed is £900,000 based on an average of £100,000 a month for the remaining 9 months of the 
financial year for which they will be open.  This figure will reduce if the Government funding for 
Leisure Trusts is forthcoming. 
 

 

Rough Sleeping & 
Homelessness 

 £50,000 

   

 
At the start of the pandemic in the UK, the Government urged all Council to remove as many 
rough sleepers from living on  the streets as possible and reduce the incidents of homelessness 
throughout the pandemic.  This was due to fears that these 2 groups would be especially 
vulnerable to the virus and also potentially that they would be  transmitters of the virus to other 
vulnerable people and the wider community. 
 
To assist in freeing up as many NHS beds as possible to be available to treat an expected upsurge 
in admissions from severe COVID 19 cases, our Housing Team took action to ensure there was 
accommodation available for those awaiting discharge from hospital who would be homeless or 
had no fixed abode.  In addition, they worked with Onward Homes to provide 4 furnished flats for 
those required to self-isolate when they had  no other alternative arrangements, steps  were also 
taken to ensure emergency accommodation was always available and additional capacity was 
created in the private rented sector for up to 5 households. 
 
The estimated spend in this area for the year is £50,000, with £20,000 spent to date reduced by 
£4,000 of specific funding for this area with the expectation that costs will be higher in the latter 
part of the year, if a second wave hits through the winter months. 
 
 
 

 

 

Hyndburn Hub  £488,000 

   

 
At the start of the Lockdown in the UK, the Government required all Councils to create a resource 
to assist their local communities mitigate the most severe risks to their population from the virus 
and the lockdown measures.   
 
In Hyndburn we developed our response under the “Hyndburn Hub” branding. The Hub has 

Page 7



Page 6 of 13 
 

operated successfully from the first few days of the crisis and provided enormous support to the 
local community, ensuring their needs have been met and it will continue to operate until the 
pandemic ends.  
 
It has taken the lead in ensuring the local community is fully informed of the dangers the virus 
presents, what action everyone should take to stay safe and protect others, how to behave when 
interacting with others, what the most vulnerable should and should not do and providing help to 
those who have struggled through this period, by providing advice, assistance, food, medical 
supplies and meeting other requests.  It has also been the key lynchpin between the Council and 
the various community organisations and charities that have offered support and help during this 
period and co-ordinated their efforts to provide a sustainable and effective response to the threat 
of the virus. 
 
If it needs to operate to the end of the financial year and provide food parcels over that period to 
the most vulnerable the estimated cost is expected to be £488,000.  If the NHS continues to fund 
the shielded or other means of financing the food to the most vulnerable is found or it is not 
needed the costs should reduce substantially. At this point with infection rates still not 
substantially decreasing and a potential second wave nationally later in the year, we are 
continuing to operate on the assumption that the Hub will operate to the end of the financial year 
and that a ramp up in operating costs will occur. 
 
    
 
 

 

ICT additional investment  £150,000 

   

 
COVID 19 has forced the Council to dramatically alter many of the ways it works including looking 
to protect its staff by allowing them to work from home for elongated periods.  This has required 
the Council to invest in new ICT equipment to allow home working by staff, upgrade back office 
systems to facilitate the changes, enhance and acquire new hardware and software and redesign 
work, control  and ICT processes.  These actions have largely ensured the Council was able to 
continue to deliver almost all of its services during the period of the lockdown.  The Council is now 
in a position to sustain a lengthy period of operation while social distancing and safety measures 
continue to operate  and the risk from the virus to service delivery has been minimised amongst 
the workforce. 
 
In addition, the Council has instigated a major upgraded to its Telephone System to ensure it can 
function remotely and thereby establish effective resilience for the key method of the public 
interacting with the Council.   
 
Until these changes began to be made the Council was relying on Contact Centre staff working 
from their normal office base with a potential risk that  the virus would be spread amongst the 
workforce and render the service inoperable.   The new technology allows staff to work from 
home as though they were in the office, handling calls and emails and interacting with other 
Council employees and the public as if they were in the office.  The new technology also provides 
additional capabilities around extending the working day and weekend working if this was ever 
required, as staff indicted, they were able to be more flexible if they could operate from home, if 
there was a need to provide a Call Centre Service outside normal office hours . 

Cemetery & Cremations  £45,000 

Page 8



Page 7 of 13 
 

Service 

   

 
An estimate of additional cost pressures around funeral services has been projected to cover 
overtime should the death rates increase in a second wave beyond the normal capacity of the 
Service for a sustained period. 
 
If death rates remain low within Hyndburn and we are not called upon to assist with funeral 
services from other areas, it should be possible to avoid these extra costs. 
  

 

Waste Services  £80,000 

   

 
These costs cover additional agency staff and the use of outside contractors as well as any extra 
costs around vehicle parts and servicing for Waste Services to ensure the service is able to fully 
functional at all times and household and trade waste continues to be collected, streets are swept 
clean and bins emptied etc. 
 
In the first part of the pandemic, staffing levels in these areas were largely maintained with 
difficulties only arising around the number of mechanics available to meet the demands around 
vehicle maintenance and repair.  An amount of work usually undertaken in house was outsourced 
at an extra cost to ensure the fleet was fully operational at this time.   Given the new  rules around 
the need to self-isolate if a work colleague tests positive, funds have been earmarked to meet the 
cost of agency staff to replace any teams lost in this way. 
 
If we do not suffer a workplace infection among critical key functions the predicted expenditure in 
this area should reduce. 
 
 

 

Planning & Development  £50,000 

   

 
This is an estimated cost of various necessary changes  needed to ICT systems in Planning & 
Development to allow the Department’s staff  to be fully functional from home, so that a full 
Planning & Development Service can continue to function even if staff are mainly working  from 
home and to ensure the service will be able to respond to all the legal requirements and customer 
interfaces requirements, while not operating from the office. 
 

 

Finance & Corporate Revenue 
& Benefits 

 £500,000 

   

 
We expect to see a significant increase in the non-payment of overpayments of Housing Benefits 
and the need to subsequently  increase the cost of the Bad Debt Provision and Write-Off amounts 
in year.  We suspended debt recovery during the first part of the year and any delay in instigating 
recovery action always leads to an upsurge in non-payment.  Additionally, the economic 

Page 9



Page 8 of 13 
 

consequences of the downturn in the economy will reduce many people’s individual financial 
circumstances and this will lead to less debt being repaid and more bad debts. 
 
 

 

Finance & Corporate Other  £508,000 

   

 
We expect to see a significant increase in the non-payment of debts owed to the Council and the 
need to subsequently  increase the cost of the Bad Debt Provision and Write-Off amounts in year.  
We suspended debt recovery during the first part of the year and any delay in instigating recovery 
action always leads to an upsurge in non-payment.  Additionally, the economic consequences of 
the downturn in the economy will reduce many people’s individual financial circumstances and 
this will lead to less debt being repaid and more bad debts.  We would expect that some 
individuals and companies owing money to the Council will go bankrupt during this period and 
default on the amounts owed to the Council.  We also expect to incur some additional Corporate 
Costs around financial contingencies to protect the Councils overall financial position. 
 
 

 

 

Personal Protective Equipment 
(PPE) 

 £60,000 

   

 
The Council is now incurring unbudgeted costs to meet the cost of safety measures to protect its 
staff and the public from the transmission of the virus.  It has purchased in line with Government 
recommendations and best practice additional cleaning materials, masks, gloves, and sanitiser 
since the start of the crisis.  It has also employed additional cleaners and is looking to redesign 
public areas to minimise the chance of the virus being transmitted in these work areas.  
 
 

 

 

Sales, Fees & Charges  £371,000 

   

 
The Council raises revenue from a variety of income streams from sales, fees and charges for 
services provided.  We currently estimate that we will lose around £681,000 in revenue from 
these sources during the year. 
 
The Government has indicated that it will provide financial assistance to Councils to replace some 
of the lost income it occurs.  Details of the precise scheme have yet to be announced, but we have 
assumed we will receive £310,000 of the £681,000 lost, which is 45%. This is a net  adverse 
variance impact of £371,000. 
 
 
The actual final figure will not be known until details of the Government scheme is announced 

Page 10



Page 9 of 13 
 

and we are able to calculate the exact income losses for the whole of the year. 
 

 

COVID 19 Revenue Budget Pressure 2021/22 

3.20. A number of the key financial consequences of the pandemic will not materialise 
until the 2021/22 financial year due to the statutory rules governing local authority 
accounting.  These are detailed immediately below.  In addition, there will be 
reductions in the Council’s available resources of Council Tax and Business Rates 
from for 2021/22 from the economic impact of COVID 19 and the expected hit to 
Revenue Support Grant from any redistribution of funding under the Government’s 
Fair Funding Review, the detail of which is due to be announced by the end of 
December 2020 and implemented for the financial year commencing on the 1st 
April 2021. 

3.21. At this stage the working assumption is that the direct financial costs of COVID 19 
end in the 2020/21 financial year and the extraordinary expenditure required in 
2020/21 is not repeated at all in 2021/22.  The assumption is that the impact on 
sales, fees and charges income levels similarly ceases.  If indications later emerge 
that this is not likely to be the case the forecasts for 2021/22 will be updated. 

Council Tax Support 
 

 £130,000 

   

 
The Council shares the cost of the lost revenue with the other Preceptors from households that 
are eligible to receive Council Tax Support. 
 
Cases have risen by 500 in the first 4 months of the year with each case costing the Preceptors 
around £1,300 in revenue.(assuming most are Band A properties with a single person discount v 
full payment ratio of 45/55).  It is expected the number of awards will increase further throughout 
the year as the furlough scheme ends and more employers make redundancies. If a further 500 
cases were added in each four month period  for the remainder of the year, this will lead to a loss 
of income to the Preceptor of £920,000  for the financial year with HBC share of 14% equal to 
£130,000. 
 
Due to the statutory financial rules around accounting for Council Tax the loss will not actually 
physically occur until the 2021/22 financial year. 
 

 

Council Tax  
 

 £450,000 

   

 
The Council shares the cost of the lost revenue with the other Preceptors from households that 
fail to pay Council Tax. 
 
In the first 3 months of the year collection rates are down and we expect the amount not paid to 
increase as the year progresses. Overall a 10% decrease in non-payment would reduce the 

Page 11



Page 10 of 13 
 

amount of Council Tax collected by £3.56m with HBC share equivalent to £450,000. 
 
As with Council Tax Support the accounting rules around these non-payments require that the 
loss of £450,000 manifest itself in the 2021/22 accounts not the 2020/21 current year. 
 
 
 

 

 

Business Rates  £685,000 

   

 
The Council shares funds raised from Business Rates with the Government, Lancashire County 
Council and the Fire and Rescue Authority. 
 
In the first 3 months of the year collection rates are down and we expect the amount not paid to 
increase as the year progresses. Overall a 10% decrease in non-payment would reduce the 
amount of Business Rates  collected by £1.370m with the HBC share equivalent to £685,000. 
 
As with Council Tax Support and Council Tax  the accounting rules around these non-payments 
require that the loss of £685,000 manifest itself in the 2021/22 accounts not the 2020/21 current 
year. 
 
 

 

 

3.22. The accounting rules for Local Government therefore defer the impact of £1.25m of 
financial losses stemming from increased Council Tax Support and the increase in 
non-payment of Council Tax and Business Rates into the 2021/22 financial year.  
However, as the financial impact of COVID 19 on households and businesses is 
likely to continue into 2021/22, the Council will be required to adjust the amount it 
anticipates it will receive in Council Tax and Business Rates in 2021/22 to reflect the 
new levels of payment and to adjust for the increase in Council Tax Support.  This 
will further reduce the income the Council has available to fund its Budget in 
2021/22 by around £1m, giving it a double hit in that year. 

3.23. As mentioned above discussions are underway to flex the accounting rules for Local 
Government to allow the spreading of some of this financial pain over a longer 
period.  Once the Government announces the details, we will be able to revise the 
forecast of the impact for 2021/22. 

3.24. Additionally, the Government has announced its intention to continue to 
implement major reforms to the distribution of funding to local government.  These 
were previously set to be introduced for the current financial year but were 
delayed due to Brexit and other issues.  Our previous assessment as outlined in the 
February 2020 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) presented to Cabinet in 
February 2020  anticipated that Revenue Support Grant would end under these 

Page 12



Page 11 of 13 
 

changes costing the Council £1.5m of funds.  The February 2020 MTFS also 
assumed these reforms would reduce the amount of Business Rates the Council 
would be allowed to retain, but that any decrease instigated by the Government 
would be offset by local economic growth and overall net impact would be 
£600,000 of growth from this area to the Council.  The economic impact of COVID 
19 would significantly call into question that assumption at the present time and it 
must now be considered as likely that the downturn in the economy will wipe out 
all the expected growth in this area and that Business Rates available to support 
the 2021/22 Budget will flatline or decrease compared to 2020/21. 

 

Impact on Financial Health 

 

3.25. The current forecast of the Council’s Financial Outturn position at the end of March 
2021 is an adverse variance  of £1.7m.  The Council holds approximately £2.1m in 
General Reserves and therefore will be able to absorb the overall loss in 2020/21. 

3.26. General Reserves will however fall to around £400,000 as it enters 2021/22 
Financial Year.   

3.27. The Council will face significant financial pressure in 2021/22 due to the need to 
account for lost Council Tax and Business Rate income and increased Council Tax 
Support from 2020/21 in 2021/22.  It is also likely that we will face a reduction of 
£1.5m in Revenue Support Grant in 2021/22 and potentially lower Business Rates 
and Council Tax Income and the continuing financial impact stemming from 
increased Council Tax Support claims. 

3.28. The scope for the use of Reserves to help with the Budget pressures in 2021/22 will 
be depleted and the Council will face making tougher decisions than it would have 
otherwise have had to do to maintain a stable financial position over the next few 
years. 

3.29. As a consequence, we may need to transfer back the balance of unspent funds on 
the Invest to Save Reserve to the General Fund Reserve and commit to transferring 
any annual future surpluses generated over the next few years in total to the 
General Fund.   

3.30. The extent of the loss in 2020/21 may be mitigated if the Government provides 
significant financial support to the Council to assist Hyndburn Leisure and the 
Hyndburn Hub is not called upon to provide a food programme to the local 
population over the remainder of the financial year.  The position will also improve 
if we do not incur high levels of bad debt and can avoid the potential additional 
costs arising from the virus in Housing, Cemetery & Cremation Services and Waste 
Services.  

Page 13



Page 12 of 13 
 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

4.1. Not applicable.  This report is for information purposes. 

5. Consultations 
 

5.1. Not applicable  

6.  Implications 
 

Financial implications (including any 
future financial commitments for 
the Council) 
 

As outlined in the report. 

Legal and human rights implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable  

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 

 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: List of Background 
Papers  

 

Council Meeting 27th   February 2020 

General Revenue Budget 2020/21 

Medium Term Financial Strategy February 2020/21 to 2022/23 

The report can be found by clicking on this link 

Council 27th February 2020 

And downloading the relevant PDF from that page. 

Appendix 1 

Page 14

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2472&Ver=4


Page 13 of 13 
 

 

 

COVID 19 Outline Forecast Impact 2020/21

Forecast Position 2020/21 excluding COVID 19 

SURPLUS 

288,000£             

Additional COVID 19 Costs and Income Losses

Financial Support for Leisure Sector 900,000£       

Rough Sleeping & Homelessness 50,000£          

Operation of Hyundburn Hub 488,000£       

ICT Additional Investment Homeworking etc 150,000£       

Cremetery & Cremation Services 45,000£          

Waste Services Additional Staff Cover and 

Equipment

80,000£          

Planning System Upgrades to Full Remote 

Functionality

50,000£          

Finance & Corporate Revenue & Benefits 500,000£       

Finance & Corporate Other 508,000£       

Personal Protection Equipment 60,000£          

Sales, Fees & Charges 371,000£       

Total 3,202,000£    

Combined Normal Opearting Surplus with 

COVID 19 Additional Costs & Loss of Income

Loss 2,914,000-£    

Government COVID 19 Support To Date 1,039,000£    

New Burden Funding Business Grants 130,000£       

Forecast Overspend 1,745,000-£    

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 9 
 

REPORT TO: 

 

Full Council 

DATE: 

 

17 September 2020 

PORTFOLIO: 

 

Cllr Miles Parkinson OBE - Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

 

Planning For The Future – White Paper August 2020 

EXEMPT REPORT  

(Local Government 

Act 1972, Schedule 

12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 To advise members on the Governments proposals to reform the planning system in England 

as set out in the White Paper Planning for the Future.  The report will also consider the 

changes proposed by the Government to the way in which housing numbers are calculated for 

local planning authorities, as set out in the consultation paper Changes to the current planning 

system.  Links to these documents are included at Section 7 of this report.   

 

2. Recommendations  

 

2.1 That the report be noted. 

 

2.2 That a consultation response be agreed with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and that the 

response be circulated to all members.   

 

2.3 That member briefings on Site Allocations in Hyndburn be arranged for October 2020 to review 

the sites that are shortlisted for inclusion in the Local Plan.   

 

3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 

 

3.1 This section is divided into two parts.  Part 1 will consider the proposals for reforming the 

planning system as set out in the White Paper Planning for the Future, whilst Part 2 will 

consider the changes proposed to the current planning system including housing numbers.   

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5.



Page 2 of 9 
 

 Part 1  Planning for the Future, White Paper August 2020 

 

3.2 It is important to stress at the outset that the proposed reforms are significant.  The changes 

would require completely new legislation and guidance and would leave behind many of the 

principles and practices associated with the current planning system.  It is described in the 

White Paper as a “whole new planning system for England”.  Notwithstanding the extent of the 

change, the White Paper envisages that new Local Plans will be in place by the end of 

Parliament in 2024.   

 

3.3 The White Paper explains that the proposed reforms “are an attempt to rediscover the original 

mission and purpose of those who sought to improve our homes and streets in late Victorian 

and early 20th Century Britain”1.  Reform is considered necessary to deliver the high quality 

homes and places needed and to unlock growth and opportunity in all parts of the Country.  It 

is proposed that the new planning system will have a higher regard on quality, design and local 

vernacular than ever before, and draws inspiration from the idea of design codes and pattern 

books that built Bath, Belgravia and Bourneville.   

 

 
 Planning for the Future, a link to the document is attached at Section 7 of this report.   

 

3.4 The proposed changes are intended to improve the user experience of the planning system, 

making it fit for the next century, “residents will no longer have to rely on planning notices 

attached to lamp posts, printed in newspapers and posted in libraries to find out about newly 

proposed developments.”2  As well as proposing to reform the legislation and regulations that 

underpin England’s planning system, the Government is also seeking to change the way in 

which local authorities deliver their planning systems with the emphasis on improved 

technology and the use of data to underpin decision making.   

 

 “By shifting plan-making processes from documents to data, new digital civic engagement 

processes will be enabled, making it easier for people to understand what is being proposed 

where and how it will affect them……To encourage this step change, we want to support local 

                                                      
1
 Planning for the Future, page 16, A new vision for England’s Planning System.   

2
 Planning for the Future, page 24, the change we will see – a more engaging, equitable and effective system.   

Page 18



Page 3 of 9 
 

authorities to radically rethink how they produce their local plans, and profoundly re-invent the 

ambition, depth and breadth with which they engage with communities.” 

 Planning for the Future and the emerging Prop Tech sector, page 39.   

 

3.5 Under the proposals, the planning system will comprise three pillars: 

 

 Pillar One Planning for development 

 

3.6 Reform of the local plans system to enable local plans to: 

 be based on transparent, clear requirements for local authorities to identify appropriate 

levels of, and locations for, development that provide certainty and that applicants and 

communities can easily understand; 

 communicate key information clearly and visually so that plans are accessible and easily 

understandable, and communities can engage meaningfully in the process of developing 

them; 

 be published as standardised data to enable a strategic national map of planning to be 

created; 

 be developed using a clear, efficient and standard process; 

 benefit from a radically and profoundly re-invented engagement with local communities 

so that more democracy takes place effectively at the plan-making stage; and 

 set clear expectations on what is required on land that is identified for development, so 

that plans give confidence in the future growth of areas and facilitate the delivery of 

beautiful and sustainable places. 

 

3.7 As described above, a key part of this change will also be to seek a step change in the way 

that local communities are engaged, principally through the use of innovative IT solutions.   

 

3.8 The speed of local plan preparation would be improved by abolishing requirements such as 

sustainability appraisals and the duty to cooperate as well as ensuring evidence requirements 

are proportionate to their need.   

 

3.9 A key part of the proposed changes would also see a suite of development management 

policies developed nationally.  This would allow local authorities to focus on detailed site 

specific matters like design through the preparation of design codes for areas.   

 

 Pillar Two Planning for beautiful and sustainable places 

 

3.10 The Government sees the planning system3 as a powerful tool for creating visions of how 

places can be engaging communities in that process and fostering high quality development: 

not just beautiful buildings, but the gardens, parks and other green spaces in between, as well 

as the facilities which are essential for building a real sense of community.  It should generate 

net gains for the quality of our built environment – not just no net harm.  

 

                                                      
3
 Planning for the Future, page 44.  Overview of Pillar Two.   

Page 19



Page 4 of 9 
 

3.11 A National Model Design Code will be published to accompany the National Design Guide that 

was published last year.  This will set out more detailed parameters for development in 

different locations and provide guidance on issues such as the layout of streets and blocks, 

public spaces, parking arrangements, street trees and high quality cycling and walking 

provision.  A revised Manual for Streets will also be produced.   

 

3.12 A “fast track for beauty” is also proposed that will allow proposals with high quality design to be 

fast tracked through the planning system.   

 

3.13 Areas identified as Growth Areas by local authorities will require masterplans and design codes 

to be prepared, which should be in place prior to detailed proposals coming forward.  These 

should be prepared alongside or subsequent to local plans.   

 

3.14 Alongside proposals that seek to improve the quality of design, the Government also propose 

to widen the scope of permitted development rights.  This would be done in accordance with 

important design principles or pattern books with standard building types.   

 

3.15 The reformed planning system will continue to protect places with environmental and cultural 

value through the identification of important areas.  This will be in line with the Governments 25 

year Environment Plan.  The Government propose4 to amend National Planning Policy 

Framework to ensure that it targets those areas where a reformed planning system can most 

effectively play a role in mitigating and adapting to Climate Change and maximising 

environmental benefits.   

 

 Pillar three Planning for infrastructure and connected places 

 

3.16 The Government recognises that new development brings with it demand for public services 

and infrastructure and this section of the White Paper sets out how it is proposed to capture a 

greater proportion of the land value uplift created by planning and new development so that 

new infrastructure can be delivered.   

 

3.17 The reforms are intended to ensure that developer contributions are: 

 responsive to local needs, to ensure a fairer contribution from developers for local 

communities so that the right infrastructure and affordable housing is delivered; 

 transparent, so it is clear to existing and new residents what new infrastructure will 

accompany development; 

 consistent and simplified, to remove unnecessary delay and support competition in the 

housebuilding industry; 

 buoyant, so that when prices go up the benefits are shared fairly between developers 

and the local community, and when prices go down there is no need to re-negotiate 

agreements. 

 

                                                      
4
 Planning for the Future, page 57.   

Page 20



Page 5 of 9 
 

3.18 The Government are seeking views on how a tax could be applied and, if so, what percentage 

of the land uplift value it should seek to capture – in the range between 25 and 50%.  These 

proposals are very similar to the Betterment Levy introduced after the Second World War also 

as a means of taxing uplift.  The Government recognise that a balance should be struck 

between taxation and viability.   

 

3.19 A consolidated infrastructure levy is therefore proposed.  The Government are seeking views 

about whether this should be set at a flat rate of differ between areas.  Local authorities would 

be able to borrow against future infrastructure levy income.  Income from the Levy could also 

be used to deliver affordable housing.   

 

3.20 The White Paper also includes details of how the new system will be implemented and 

proposes that the cost of operating the new planning system should be principally funded by 

the beneficiaries of planning gain – landowners and developers – rather than the national or 

local tax payer.  Fees for planning applications would be set locally and income could be 

gained from the development of the local plan and enforcement.   

 

 Part 2  Changes to the Current Planning System 

 

3. At the same time the White Paper was published the Government also published a 

consultation document setting out changes to the current planning system.  The 4 main 

proposals are: 

 

i. Changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need. 

 

In 2018 the Government introduced a standard methodology that local authorities 

could use to form the basis of their housing numbers.  Although this was intended to 

ensure that it would result in the development of sufficient new homes to meet the 

Government’s target of 300,000 new homes per year, the methodology would not 

achieve that number.  In many areas, Hyndburn being a good example, the 2018 

standard methodology resulted in a housing number (60 dwellings per year) 

significantly below the number already being planned (213 dwellings per year).   

 

In order to further boost supply, the Government is proposing to amend the means 

by which the standard method calculates housing numbers by including a reference 

to existing stock.  The relative level of affordability is also factored into the 

calculation.  Consultants Lichfields have calculated the numbers of new homes that 

would be required for each local authority in England using the proposed 

methodology and for Hyndburn this increases to 165 dwellings per annum.   

 

The consultation paper stresses that this is the starting point and that the approach 

is likely to be refined in future under the changes proposed by the White Paper.  

However, in order to ensure the numbers of new homes planned by the Government 

are delivered it is proposed to prescribe this number to local authorities, meaning 

Page 21



Page 6 of 9 
 

that local planning authorities will no longer be responsible for deriving their own 

housing numbers.   

 

ii. Securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term 

until the transition to a new system. 

 

The Government proposes to set out in policy that a minimum of 25% of all 

affordable homes secured through developer contributions should be first homes.  

These will initially be secured through s.106 funding but later through the 

infrastructure levy proposed by the White Paper reforms described earlier in this 

report.  The consultation paper sets out a variety of assumptions and scenarios 

associated with this approach and advises how the policy may apply in the interim, 

i.e. between the current system and that proposed by the White Paper.  The main 

issue for Hyndburn when considering affordable housing remains the financial 

viability of sites (particularly previously developed land) and this will remain the case.   

 

iii. Supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small 

sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to affordable 

housing.   

 

The proposals seek to support smaller construction companies by raising the 

threshold for affordable housing contributions on smaller sites.  The consultation 

paper seeks views on raising the threshold to sites of up to 40 or 50 homes, meaning 

that a contribution for affordable homes would not be sought for developments of 

less than that number.   

 

At present, policy advises that contributions should not be sought on sites with an 

area of less than 0.5ha.  The other option being explored is to increase the size 

threshold of sites.  In the first instance these proposals may be for a temporary 

period (18 months) to boost the economic recovery.   

 

iv. Extending the current Permission in Principle to major development.   

 

Permission in principle was introduced in 2017 as a faster means of obtaining 

planning permission for housing led developments, providing greater certainty for 

developers that the principle of housing development on a site was acceptable in 

principle.  Technical details are submitted at a later stage.   

 

The Government is proposing to extend this approach to larger sites (potentially up 

to 150 dwellings), at the moment it only applies to small sites of up to 10 dwellings.  

The consultation also seeks views on the extent to which permission in principle for 

housing led schemes can incorporate commercial development.   

 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 

Page 22



Page 7 of 9 
 

4.1 In consultation with the portfolio holder, Officers will prepare a response to Government on the 

proposed changes to the planning system.  The response will be circulated to all members.   

 

4.2 The Government is seeking to implement the proposed reforms within a short timescale.  The 

Council is seeking to publish the publication version of the Local Plan in Spring 2021, however, 

there could be a requirement for the Council to produce a new style Local Plan at around that 

time.  It will therefore be necessary for a decision to be made about whether to continue with 

the “old style plan” or to develop a “new style plan” as envisaged by Government.  Officers will 

consult elected members of the sites that have been shortlisted for the local plan in October 

2020 and this is recommended as an action.   

 

4.3 In the interim, officers will continue to develop the Local Plan but manage its preparation in 

such a manner that would facilitate a seamless transition between the two different 

approaches.   

 

5. Consultations 

 

5.1 Not applicable.   

 

6. Implications 

 

Financial implications (including any 

future financial commitments for the 

Council) 

 

The proposals seek to reduce the burden of 

evidence currently required for the preparation of 

local plans.  There is a significant cost involved in 

the preparation of local plans and this could be 

reduced under the proposed reforms.   

 

There are likely to be costs associated with the 

introduction of new software by local authorities to 

communicate with communities in the manner 

envisaged by Government.   

 

 

Legal and human rights implications 

 

It is anticipated that these would be addressed 

through new Government policy. 

Assessment of risk 

 

Risk will be minimised by ensuring that decisions 

are taken in accordance with law / policy and are 

reasonable.   

Equality and diversity implications 

A Customer First Analysis should be 

completed in relation to policy decisions 

and should be attached as an appendix 

to the report.  

 

This report is concerned with Government Policy, 

not Council policy.  It is not considered necessary 

to undertake a Customer First Analysis since the 

report is not making any policy recommendations.   

Page 23

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 8 of 9 
 

 

 

 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  

 

7.1 Copies of documents included in this list must be open to inspection and, in the case of 

 reports to Cabinet, must be published on the website.  

 

 Links to Documents: 

 

 1. Planning for the Future, White Paper August 2020 

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future 

 

 

2. Changes to the current planning system, Consultation on changes to planning 

policy and regulations, August 2020  

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-current-planning-

system 

 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/att

achment_data/file/907215/200805_Changes_to_the_current_planning_system_FI

NAL_version.pdf 

 

 

3. Report by Lichfields, How Many Homes? The New Standard Method. 

 

https://lichfields.uk/grow-renew-protect-planning-for-the-future/how-many-homes-the-

new-standard-method/ 

 

 

 

8. Freedom of Information 

 

8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 

 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information  Act 

2000. 

 
  

Page 24

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-current-planning-system
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-current-planning-system
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/907215/200805_Changes_to_the_current_planning_system_FINAL_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/907215/200805_Changes_to_the_current_planning_system_FINAL_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/907215/200805_Changes_to_the_current_planning_system_FINAL_version.pdf
https://lichfields.uk/grow-renew-protect-planning-for-the-future/how-many-homes-the-new-standard-method/
https://lichfields.uk/grow-renew-protect-planning-for-the-future/how-many-homes-the-new-standard-method/


Page 9 of 9 
 

Appendix 1 Government summary of Planning for the Future   

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 17 September 2020 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Head of Member Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motions for Debate at Council -  

1. Speed Cameras – West End and Stanhill, 
Oswaldtwistle 

2. Reduction of Speed Limit on Harwood Road 
(between Rishton and Great Harwood) 

3. Business Welcome Pack 
4. Free Car Parking 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: N/A 

 
The Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council 
Procedure Rule A9, as amended by Section 10 of the Remote Meetings Procedure Rules:- 
 
1. Speed Cameras – West End and Stanhill, Oswaldtwistle  
 
Motion on application for speed cameras on Blackburn Road-Stanhill Lane/Road. 
 
Many roads in Hyndburn suffer from speeding motorists, however some areas that are semi-
rural or have open stretches of road are also accident hotspots. 
 
Blackburn Road, West End, Oswaldtwistle, dubbed "The most dangerous Road in 
Oswaldtwistle", has had some interventions that have not met their aims of reducing speeds 
and incidents. 
 
Conversely, Stanhill Lane/Road has had no interventions whatsoever and is the scene of 
many accidents including recently when a car was turned onto its roof. 
 
Both of these roads are dangerous to members of the public in Hyndburn causing serious 
injury and potential fatality. 
 
At what point do Lancashire County Council say enough is enough? 
 
This Council resolves to write to Highways Chief - the Conservative County Councillor Keith 
Iddon, to ask that urgent plans are made to install speed cameras on these roads, which is 
the only single measure that will slow traffic on this road. 
 
The introduction of average speed cameras on both of these roads will also bring in revenue 
as it is a known speeding hotspot, similar to the ones previously installed on Grane Road. 
 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6.



 

Proposer: Cllr Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Cllr Chris Knight 
 
Submitted on 1st September 2020 
 
2. Reduction of speed limit from 50mph to 30mph along Harwood Road leading to 

Lee Lane (between Rishton and Great Harwood) 
 
There is an extremely severe bend between Rishton and Great Harwood (where Harwood 
Road becomes Lee Lane) which drivers often take far too fast, and there have been a high 
number of road traffic accidents, which have almost destroyed the adjacent dry-stone walls. 
Below is a photo of the aftermath of the most recent accident on 9th August 2019, which 
completely destroyed a bus stop.  It was only pure luck that nobody was standing there as 
they would have almost definitely been killed.  I have also attached photos of a further 
incident which took place on 27th November 2019 which destroyed a section of wall and 
fence.  
 
The Police have confirmed that multiple accidents have taken place in this area.  The area is 
a danger to pedestrians and motorists alike.  
 
The severe bend is also very close to the junction with Wilpshire Road where cars traveling at 
excessive speed create an additional danger for motorists.  
 
Seemingly, defying any common sense, there are 50mph signs at multiple locations along 
that stretch, which could have the effect of encouraging motorists to speed up at stretch of 
road with a severe bend which is only practically suitable for speeds up to 30mph. 
 
The current 50mph limit along that stretch also contrasts with the speed limits on the 
stretches of road between Rishton and Clayton-Le-Moors (which is entirely 30mph), and 
Blackburn Road leading out of Rishton towards Whitebirk roundabout (where the 30mph 
extends a long way beyond the main urban boundary).  
 
I have made representation at the regular traffic/ highways liaison meetings (which HBC 
officers attend), have referred this issue to LCC Councillors (who have also made 
representation), and have submitted several requests through the LCC app (and have 
encouraged Rishton residents to do the same), all to no avail.  On this basis I hope the 
Council can support this motion   
 
This Council resolves to:  
 
Request that Lancashire County Council (as the Highways Authority) gives serious 
consideration to reducing the speed limit from 50mph to 30mph along the stretch of road 
which is Harwood Road leading to Lee Lane (between Rishton and Great Harwood) until just 
after the Wilpshire Road junction. 

Page 28



 

 
Aftermath of incident of 9th Aug 2019 (including destroyed bus stop) 
 

  
Aftermath of incident of 27th November 2019 
 

Page 29



 

 
 
 
 
Proposer Cllr Jeff Scales 
Seconder Cllr Miles Parkinson 
 
Submitted on 2nd September 2020 
 
3. Business Welcome Pack 
 
That this Council commissions a “business welcome pack” designed to provide as much 
support and help as possible for Hyndburn businesses currently residing in the borough and 
for businesses looking to set up here.  
 
The pack would include such information like council services (waste & pest) insurance 
guidance, available council properties, council rates etc and information on each township 
why they are fantastic places for any businesses to invest in. 

Existing start of 50mph limit 
on the way out of Rishton 
and where 30mph zone 
begins into Rishton 

Proposed start of 
50mph limit  

RISHTON 

TO GREAT 
HARWOOD 

Previously 
destroyed bus stop  

 = Location of 
50mph signs  

Page 30



 

 
As a Council we need to now, more than ever, help local businesses who are already here, or 
wanting to set up here.  
 
Proposer Cllr Josh Allen 
Seconder Cllr Marlene Haworth 
 
Submitted on 7th September 2020 
 
4. Free Car Parking 
 
Hyndburn Council recognises and believes in the importance of free car parking in town 
Centres as a lifeline to local businesses who are competing with both online shopping and 
large out of town retail parks.  This is increasingly important at this moment in time, as we 
need to support our local businesses in the recovery from the CV-19 pandemic.  
 
The decision of Property Partners Management, who own the Arndale car park in Accrington, 
to reduce the amount of free parking from 3 hours to 30 minutes, will be damaging to local 
businesses who rely on people being able to park for free and visit their shops.  It is also an 
additional financial burden on many residents, at a difficult time.  
 
This Council resolves that the Chief Executive of the Council write a letter to Property 
Partners Management, to ask that they review their decision in light of the current economic 
climate and the need for them to play their role in supporting local businesses and residents 
in the recovery to CV-19. 
 
Proposer Cllr Sara Britcliffe 
Seconder Cllr Judith Addison 
 
Submitted on 7th September 2020 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Financial Position 2020/21 - COVID-19 Implications
	5. Planning For The Future - White Paper August 2020
	6. Motion(s) submitted on Notice

